Public Document Pack

Peak District National Park Authority
Tel: 01629 816200

E-mail: customer.service@peakdistrict.gov.uk PEAK

Web: www.peakdistrict.gov.uk

Aldern House, Baslow Road, Bakewell, Derbyshire. DE45 1AE DISTRICT
NATIONAL
PARK

Our Values: Care — Enjoy — Pioneer

Our Ref: A.1142/3667
Date: 20 April 2023
NOTICE OF MEETING
Meeting: National Park Authority
Date: Friday 28 April 2023
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Aldern House

PHILIP MULLIGAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE




AGENDA

1.

Roll Call of Members Present, Apologies for Absence and Members
Declarations of Interest

Urgent Business

Public Participation

To note any questions or to receive any statements, representations,
deputations and petitions which relate to the published reports on Part A of the
Agenda.

FOR INFORMATION

4, Chair's Briefing

FOR DECISION

5. National Park Management Plan - Overall Progress Report 2018-23 (Pages
5-20)
Appendix 1

6. Organisational Change Proposal (PM) (Pages 21 - 24)

7. Exempt Information S100(A) Local Government Act 1972
The Committee is asked to consider, in respect of the exempt items
whether the public should be excluded from the meeting to avoid the
disclosure of Exempt Information.
Draft Motion:-
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of
agenda item 8 to avoid the disclosure of Exempt Information under S100
(A) (4) Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, paragraph 3
‘information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information).

PART B

8. Organisational Change Proposal (PM)

Duration of Meeting

5 mins

20 mins

30 mins

60 mins

In the event of not completing its business within 3 hours of the start of the meeting, in accordance
with the Authority’s Standing Orders, the Authority will decide whether or not to continue the meeting.
If the Authority decides not to continue the meeting it will be adjourned and the remaining business

considere

d at the next scheduled meeting.

If the Authority has not completed its business by 1.00pm and decides to continue the meeting the
Chair will exercise discretion to adjourn the meeting at a suitable point for a 30 minute lunch break



after which the committee will re-convene.
ACCESS TO INFORMATION - LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (as amended)

Agendas and reports

Copies of the Agenda and Part A reports are available for members of the public before and during the
meeting. These are also available on the website http://democracy.peakdistrict.gov.uk

Background Papers

The Local Government Act 1972 requires that the Authority shall list any unpublished Background
Papers necessarily used in the preparation of the Reports. The Background Papers referred to in
each report, PART A, excluding those papers that contain Exempt or Confidential Information, PART
B, can be inspected on the Authority’s website.

Public Participation and Other Representations from third parties

Since the Coronavirus restrictions have eased the Authority has returned to physical meetings.
However, meetings of the Authority and its Committees may still take place at venues other than its
offices at Aldern House, Bakewell when necessary. Public participation is still available and anyone
wishing to participate at the meeting under the Authority's Public Participation Scheme is required to
give notice to the Head of Law to be received not later than 12.00 noon on the Wednesday preceding
the Friday meeting. The Scheme is available on the website http://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-
after/about-us/have-your-say or on request from the Democratic and Legal Support Team 01629
816362, email address: democraticandlegalsupport@peakdistrict.gov.uk.

Written Representations

Other written representations on items on the agenda, except those from formal consultees, will not
be reported to the meeting if received after 12noon on the Wednesday preceding the Friday meeting.

Recording of Meetings

In accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 members of the public may record and
report on our open meetings using sound, video, film, photograph or any other means this includes
blogging or tweeting, posts on social media sites or publishing on video sharing sites. If you intend to
record or report on one of our meetings you are asked to contact the Democratic and Legal Support
Team in advance of the meeting so we can make sure it will not disrupt the meeting and is carried out
in accordance with any published protocols and guidance.

The Authority uses an audio sound system to make it easier to hear public speakers and discussions
during the meeting and makes an audio visual broadcast and recording available after the meeting.
From 3 February 2017 the recordings will be retained for three years after the date of the meeting.
During the period May 2020 to April 2021, due to the Covid-19 pandemic situation, Authority meetings
were broadcast via YouTube and these meetings are also retained for three years from the date of the
meeting.

General Information for Members of the Public Attending Meetings

Since the Coronavirus restrictions have eased the Authority has returned to physical meetings.
However, meetings of the Authority and its Committees may still take place at venues other than its
offices at Aldern House, Bakewell when necessary, the venue for a meeting will be specified on the
agenda. There may be limited spaces available for the public at meetings and priority will be given to
those who are participating in the meeting. It is intended that the meetings will be visually broadcast
via YouTube and the broadcast will be available live on the Authority’s website.

This meeting will take place at Aldern House, Baslow Road,Bakewell, DE45 1AE.

Aldern House is situated on the A619 Bakewell to Baslow Road. Car parking is available. Local Bus
Services from Bakewell centre and from Chesterfield and Sheffield pick up and set down near Aldern
House. Further information on Public transport from surrounding areas can be obtained from
Traveline on 0871 200 2233 or on the Traveline website at www.travelineeastmidlands.co.uk.



http://democracy.peakdistrict.gov.uk/
http://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/about-us/have-your-say
http://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/about-us/have-your-say
mailto:democraticandlegalsupport@peakdistrict.gov.uk
http://www.travelineeastmidlands.co.uk/

Please note that there is no refreshment provision for members of the public before the meeting or
during meeting breaks. However, there are cafes, pubs and shops in Bakewell town centre,
approximately 15 minutes walk away.

To: Members of National Park Authority:

Chair: Clir A McCloy

Deputy Chair: Mr J W Berresford

Clir W Armitage Clir P Brady
Clir M Chaplin Clir D Chapman
Clir C Farrell ClIr C Furness
Clir C Greaves Clir A Gregory
Prof J Haddock-Fraser Mr Z Hamid

Ms A Harling Clir A Hart

Clir Mrs G Heath ClIr I Huddlestone
Clir C McLaren Clir D Murphy
Clir Mrs K Potter Clir V Priestley
Clir K Richardson Miss L Slack

Mr K Smith Dr R Swetnam
Clir P Tapping Clir D Taylor
Clir 3 Wharmby Ms Y Witter

Clir B Woods

Constituent Authorities
Secretary of State for the Environment
Natural England



National Park Authority Meeting — Part A Agenda ltem 5.
28 April 2023

5. NATIONAL PARK MANAGEMENT PLAN - OVERALL PROGRESS REPORT
2018-23
1. Purpose of the report

This report provides Members with overall progress on implementing the Peak
District National Park Management Plan 2018-23.

Key Issues

e Section 66 of 1995 Environment Act requires National Park Authorities to
produce and update a National Park Management Plan every 5 years.

e At the end of our fifth year (2022-23) of the National Park Management Plan,
an overall progress report has been produced, which forms Appendix 1 to this
report. This provides a more detailed update on all sections of the
Management Plan referred to in this report.

¢ Following the adoption of the 2023-28 National Park Management Plan and
the intention to form a new delivery group to support the implementation of the
new plan, the current Advisory Group chaired by Dianne Jeffrey was
disbanded at the end of March 2023. We thank Dianne for her time and
commitment over the last two Plan periods.

2. Recommendations

1. That Members approve the National Park Management Plan - Overall
Progress Report 2018-23.

2. That any necessary changes to the proposed wording of the Overall
Progress Report 2018-23 are delegated to the Chief Executive.

3. How does this contribute to our policies and legal obligations?

Requirement to produce and update the National Park Management Plan

1. Section 66 of 1995 Environment Act requires National Park Authorities to
produce a National Park Management Plan which ‘formulates policy for the
management of the relevant Park and for the carrying out of its functions in
relation to that Park’ and should reflect national park purposes. This should
be updated at least every 5 years.

2. The UK Government vision and circular 2010 for the English National Parks
and the Broads states that ‘Park Management Plans are the over-arching
strategic document for the Parks and set the vision and objectives which will
guide the future of the Park over the next 10 to 20 years. The Park
Management Plans are for the Parks and not just the Authorities. They
should be supported by clear strategies with evidence of significant ‘buy-in’
from key partners and stakeholders, including communities, land owners and
land managers. The Government expects public agencies and authorities
active within or bordering a Park to cooperate in the development of the Park
Management Plan and the achievement of the Management Plan objectives.’

3. This means the National Park Management Plan is not a plan for the work of

the National Park Authority, or of any one organisation, but about what can
be achieved by everyone with an interest in the National Park and its future.

Page 5



National Park Authority Meeting — Part A
28 April 2023

Page 6

The plan is therefore a partnership plan reflecting ambitions across the whole
National Park and reflects the input of numerous organisations.

4. Through Our Corporate Strategy 2019-24, the National Park Authority
delivered its contribution to this National Park Management Plan.

Background Information

The Peak District National Park Management Plan 2018-23 was adopted by the
Authority at its meeting on the 25th May 2018 (minute reference 21/18). The
Management Plan focused on six areas of impact:

1: Preparing for a future climate

2: Ensuring a future for farming and land management
3: Managing landscape conservation on a big scale

4: A National Park for everyone

5: Encouraging enjoyment with understanding

6: Supporting thriving and sustainable communities and economy

Proposals

Delivery Progress

Under each Area of Impact, there were a set of intentions that provided further
detail on what we aimed to achieve. In total there were fifteen intentions. An
Annual Monitoring Report has been produced at the end of each year to outline
the progress made in terms of implementing actions in the delivery plan.

Overall, despite resources being directed to dealing with covid during some of the
plan period, excellent progress has been made across every area of impact to
implement the actions in the delivery plan over the last five years. Particular
successes include the Moors for the Future Partnership continuing to deliver
excellent moorland restoration works alongside scientific  monitoring.
#PeakDistrictProud (#PDP) has shared the positive ways in which people can
help care for the National Park and the countryside code has been refreshed and
released, including being available in 21 languages. The White Peak Partnership
supported the development and implementation of the Peak District
Environmental Land Management Scheme (ELMs) test. The Farming in Protected
Landscapes (FiPL) programme was an unexpected opportunity which was
developed in a very short period with Defra, launched in July 2021 and is now
successfully delivering at a landscape scale for climate, nature, people and place.

The areas where we made less progress than anticipated or not as originally
envisaged are the sustainable travel and integration of more trees into the
landscape elements of intention 1.1 climate change and the monitoring at a
landscape scale element of intention 3.1. In terms of sustainable travel, this was
included as a new action just before the covid pandemic started, so we lost the
first year of delivery due to people’s attention being on managing the impact of the
pandemic. Since then, we have developed partnerships across the various
transport boundaries that cross the National Park and started to collate our
existing travel data. We have also built on the success of the Hope Valley
Explorer, which offers visitors an alternative sustainable travel experience.



National Park Authority Meeting — Part A
28 April 2023

However, we haven’t progressed this to the stage of being in a position to offer a
low carbon sustainable transport which supports and encourages a new
sustainable travel hierarchy.

In terms of integration of more trees into the landscape, we haven’t planted as
many trees as anticipated due to larger-scale planting proposals taking time to
come to fruition. They often necessitate existing agri-environment scheme
agreement amendments, which can be a barrier, and the complexity and number
of different funding sources is confusing and can be off-putting.

In terms of monitoring at a landscape scale, we have reconsidered how we
undertake this action, and are currently working on a different methodology than
at the start of the NPMP. We are now using a method of reassessing changes to
the landscape using repeat detail Landscape Description Unit (LDU) photos.

The Overall Progress Report 2018-23 can be found at Appendix 1. Members are
asked to approve this Overall Progress Report. This is the final monitoring report
associated with the 2018-23 Management Plan as the new five year management
plan is in place from April 2023.

As Member's are aware, the 2023-28 National Park Management Plan was
adopted by the Authority at its December 2022 meeting (minute reference 98/22).
Partner engagement during the review was the highest it has been in recent
years, which led to a lot of support for the final plan. To ensure that the
engagement continues and that the delivery plan is implemented a new delivery
group and partnership group will be established. This means that the National
Park Management Advisory Group, which was established in 2007 to advise on
delivering the Plan was disbanded at the end of March 2023. We are grateful to all
the partners that have been represented on the group since its inception, and their
commitment to implementing the Plan. We are especially grateful to the
independent Chair of the group, Dianne Jeffrey for her enthusiasm, time and
commitment in Chairing the group over the last two Plan periods. Dianne has
been instrumental in ensuring all voices were heard and that the annual
conferences were well received.

6. Are there any corporate implications members should be concerned about?

1. Financial:
None, as delivery of the National Park Management Plan 2018-23 has
ceased.

2. Risk Management:
None, as delivery of the National Park Management Plan 2018-23 has
ceased.

3. Sustainability:
None, as delivery of the National Park Management Plan 2018-23 has

ceased.
4. Equality
None, as delivery of the National Park Management Plan 2018-23 has
ceased.
7. Climate Change

How does this decision contribute to the Authority’s role in climate change

Page 7



National Park Authority Meeting — Part A
28 April 2023

Page 8

set out in the UK Government Vision and Circular for National Parks?
None, as delivery of the National Park Management Plan 2018-23 has ceased.

1.

How does this decision contribute to the Authority meeting its carbon net zero
target?
None, as delivery of the National Park Management Plan 2018-23 has
ceased.

How does this decision contribute to the National Park meeting carbon net

zero by 20507

None, as delivery of the National Park Management Plan 2018-23 has
ceased.

Are there any other Climate Change related issues that are relevant to this
decision that should be brought to the attention of Members?
No.

Background papers (not previously published)

None

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Peak District National Park Management Plan - Overall Progress
Report 2018-23

Report Author, Job Title and Publication Date

Sarah Rowley, Data, Strategy & Performance Officer, 20" April 2023



-

A

APPENDIX 1




The fifth year of the 2018 — 2023 Peak District National Park Management Plan has been full of
change and we close this period of reporting with enthusiasm for the next plan period and
optimism as we build on previous successes. The rhythm of life across the landscape of the park
has returned to a ‘new normal’ following the turmoil of the previous few years. | am extremely
proud of the progress within this Management Plan period and extend my sincerest thanks to all
the partners involved in delivery.

Moorland restoration work has continued as the Moors for the Future partnership successfully
delivered activities on 551 ha of degraded blanket bog and blocked erosion in over 11,000 gullies
to the equivalent distance of circa 55km. Encouraging visitor enjoyment and engagement has
been further boosted this year with a pilot of multi-lingual signage at Bloor Pastures and
downloadable interpretive content at Stanage North-Lees Estate, plus an additional six ‘Miles
without Stiles’ routes have been completed.

The following report provides detail on the overall progress on implementing the Peak District
National Park Management Plan 2018-23. | am extremely proud of the partnership work which
has contributed to the successful delivery over the past two plan periods, and after 10 years the
Advisory Group, of which | am the Independent Chair, has come to a close with the end of this
plan. | wish the Peak District National Park Authority and all the delivery partners all the best as
they strive to achieve the ambitious aims outlined in the next National Park Management Plan
(2023-28).

Yours sincerely

Dﬂm%

Dianne Jeffrey
Independent Chair of the Peak District National Park Management Plan Advisory Group

The National Park Management Plan provides the framework that encourages everyone to work
together to achieve national park purposes. It is not a plan for an individual organisation or group
but a plan for the place. It is, therefore, a partnership plan. It is the single most important
strategic document for the Peak District National Park. It shares with everyone what the main
issues and priorities are. It then sets out how, together, we are going to tackle those issues over
the next five years.

The Management Plan 2018-23 was organised around six main themes known as Areas of
Impact, which were in turn broken down into a series of intentions.

Areas of Impact

Preparing for a future climate

Ensuring a future for farming and land management

Managing landscape conservation on a big scale

A National Park for everyone

Encouraging enjoyment with understanding

Supporting thriving and sustainable communities and economy

ogkwnNE

This document provides a look back over the last five years to report key activity in the Areas of
Impact as detailed above.

Page 10



AREA OF IMPACT 1:

PREPARING FOR A FUTURE CLIMATE

INTENTION 1.1: REDUCE THE EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON THE SPECIAL

QUALITIES

ACTION

To reduce the effects of climate change on the special qualities, we will know which special qualities are
most affected by climate change, and focus action on reducing these impacts. We will undertake a climate
change vulnerability assessment on the special qualities of the National Park & produce a
mitigation/adaptation plan setting out priority actions.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19

« Technical
assessment of

special features
completed

« Assessment
applied to create
PDNP vulnerability
for each special
feature

« Climate change
vulnerability
assessment
(CCVA) adopted in

Dec 20

AREA OF IMPACT 2:

)

« CCVA published
« Delivery
partnerships
focused on:
—Sustainable
transport
—Peatland
restoration
—Grasslands for
carbon
—Trees in the

Landscape

« CCVA embedded
across PDNP service
plans
« Sustainable transport
—Hope Valley Explorer
returned

—Bus Back Better;
national strategy
launched

« Peatland restoration
—Great Northern Bog

initiative

« Grasslands for carbon
—Peak Carbon Tool

data updated

—Carbon ready
reckoner roll out

« Trees in the Landscape

« Sustainable transport
—Travel Symposium
hosted to explore new
ways to reduce private
caruse in Park
+ Peatland restoration
—Funding successes
with £6.9m grants
awarded across
Northern England
« Grasslands for carbon
—Restoration of species
rich grassland and
herbal leys continues
« Trees in the Landscape
—Wooded Landscape
plan completed
—Wood pasture

—Wooded Landscape creation &
Plan drafted enh?nceg\ent
\ Y, \_ continue )

ENSURING A FUTURE FOR FARMING AND LAND MANAGEMENT

INTENTION 2.1: SECURE FUNDING FOR FUTURE LAND MANAGEMENT TO BENEFIT ALL

ACTION

To secure funding for future land management to benefit all, we will seek to create an ideal future farming
and land management payment scheme in the Peak District National Park which helps to conserve and
enhance the special qualities.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19 Y

 Proposed blue print

for the new

environmental land

management

scheme (ELMS)

submitted to Defra

—Selected
elements of White
Peak Pilot moved
into phase 1

testing by Defra
7

« Contracted to

deliver White Peak

ELMS Phase 1

Test

—Including full
assessment of
White Peak
National
Character Area

(NCA)

»

« White Peak ELMS
Test completed and
submitted to Defra

« Launch ofthe
Sustainable Farm
Incentive Phase 1
national pilot
launched

« Further NCA tests
commenced in
Dark and South

West Peak

m»

« National funding
made available
through Farming in
Protected
Landscapes (FiPL)
Programme

+ 72 Peak District
projects funded
including;

—10 x farm
business
diversifications

—135m of dry stone
wall restoration

—620m of riverbank
protection

—106 ha of
improved habitat

* The Environmental
Improvement Plan
(2023) updates the 25
Year Environment Plan

« Defra set out more

detail of the 3 ELMS

schemes:

—Sustainable Farm
Incentive

—Countryside
Stewardship (Local
Nature Recovery)

—Landscape Recovery

FiPL funding of £1.2m

for farmer & land

manager projects
delivering for climate,
nature, people and
place.

« FiPL extension for a

forth year

ge 11



ENSURING A FUTURE FOR FARMING AND LAND MANAGEMENT

INTENTION 2.2: ENSURE THAT THE MANAGEMENT OF UPLAND MOORS DELIVERS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & ECONOMIC BENEFITS

ACTION

To ensure that the management of upland moors delivers environmental, social & economic benefits; we
will seek to restore populations of birds of prey to at least the levels present in the late 1990s, with the
addition of hen harrier as a regularly successful breeding species.

Focusing on;

1. Firerisk

2. Visitor engagement

3. Resilient sustainable moorland
4. Moorland birds

Regular monitoring of progress against these areas of focus is carried out in partnership between Natural
England, the Moorland Association and the National Park Authority. There is also an annual up-date on

progress and agreement on the focus for the future year’s activity with moorland owners, agents and

keepers.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19

« Development of
wildfire mitigation
zones

« Work commenced on
Countryside Code
guidance for visitors

moorland
management
including use of
burning which
continues to be a
sensitive issue

« Birds of Prey Initiative
continued for another
year

« Breeding Bird survey
data analysis by The
British Trust for
Ornithology

Page 12

« Collaboration between
interested parties over

« Fire Risk Map
updated with proven
accuracy

« #PeakDistrictProud
campaign launched

« 10 x Long Term
Management Plans
signed up to by
landowners

= National
communications
delivered to moorland
owners re legislation
and restrictions on
burning of heather on
blanket bog

+ Improvement in
upland bird
occupancy

+ Reduction in wildlife
crime

« Wildfire Plan template
approach in
development

« Countryside Code
reviewed and updated

« The England Peat
Restoration Fund
team in place

« Burning License now
required via Defrato
restrict blanket bog
burning

« MFFP historic
restoration map near
completion

« Birds of Prey Initiative
report showed
relatively good year

* 6 incidents of illegal
bird of prey
persecution

« Fire Operations Group
launched to draw up
fire plans and raise
awareness of wildfire
issue

« Countryside Code
released in 21 (17
website) languages

« MFFP moorland
restoration map
completed

« Final Birds of Prey
Initiative report
published:

—extremely good year
for short-eared owls

—Peregrine falcons
failed to repeat
nesting success

+ llegal persecution
continue to be an issue

« Collaboration with
moorland owners and
managers has
focused on prevention
and mitigation of
moorland fire, with
continued liaison on
the following issues:
—visitor management
—moorland birds
—sustainable,
resilient, moorland
management,
—rural and wildlife
crime
Birds of Prey initiative
has continued with
varied breeding
success — current
approach is under

review

~ @/



AREA OF IMPACT 3:
MANAGING LANDSCAPE CONSERVATION ON A BIG SCALE

INTENTION 3.1: ESTABLISH MONITORING AT A LANDSCAPE SCALE

ACTION

We want to work with partners to help us to understand how and why the landscape is changing, whether
changes are positive or not and how we should address the changes to conserve and enhance the Special
Quialities of the Peak District National Park.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19 =» »

« Discussions and » Programme of « Proposals to move « Full interpretation » Landscape strategy
agreement of draft research themes research of landscape 2023 has been
objective to explore outlined including; programme forward monitoring completed
landscape —Land Cover stalled up to programme in « Further exploration
monitoring —Landscape Covid19 and progress of a semi-

« Stakeholder Quality rest_rlct_e_d partner « Cranfield Uni automated
workshop to —Public Perception availability and projec‘t commenced approach to assess
explore partnership —Built access to land and using automatic landscape change
approach Development facilities classification of using aerial imagery

P « Partnership with land-cover and « Use of repeat detail
—Recording areas Cranfield University land-cover change; landscape
ofknown change progressed and through the use of photographs to
—Climate Change funding is being automatic assess changes
—Landscape sort segmentation and (landscape
metrics ~ @/ machine learning description unit
« Landscape forland cover photographs)
Assessment every classifications
5 years to monitor « Funds are being
and measure sought to extend
\  progress / \ researchinto 22/23

AREA OF IMPACT 3:
MANAGING LANDSCAPE CONSERVATION ON A BIG SCALE

INTENTION 3.2: DEVELOP A WHITE PEAK PARTNERSHIP

ACTION
The White Peak Partnership has been key to the delivery of Intention 2.1 securing funding for future land
management for the benefit of all.

The White Peak Project tested the following:

e Use of a National Character Area framework to deliver public goods and the 25 Year Environment
Plan in language accessible to land managers.

o Development of a ‘ready reckoner’ to show the public goods being delivered e.g. carbon.

e Trial of a nature recovery network.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19 2021-22

g g

* White Peak + White Peak Project * Tests on NCA * The White Peak * The White Peak
Partnership facilitated: considered a Partnership Partnership has
assessing key _Use of National success supported the supported the
areas of Character Area « LIFE in the Ravines implementation of development of the
development post- (NCA) framework five year The Peak District One Peak District
Brexit —Development of partnership gained Environmental Nature Recovery

+ White Peak Pilot ‘carbon ready funding and Land Management Plan
moved to phase 1 reckoner’ commenced Test « The Nature
testing for Defra’s _Trial of Nature « The aim is to Recovery Plan will
new Environmental Recovery restore and compliment future
Land Management Network improve 876 ha of Local Nature
Scheme (ELMS) \ / internationally Recovery Strategies

impor[ant ash and sit as part of the
woodlands in Peak new NPMP and
District Dales revised Local Plan
Special Area of

Conservation

(SAC)

Page 13



AREA OF IMPACT 3:

MANAGING LANDSCAPE CONSERVATION ON A BIG SCALE

INTENTION 3.3: MAINTAIN EXISTING LANDSCAPE SCALE DELIVERY

ACTION
To maintain existing landscape scale delivery we will develop a clear long term vision, plan and have

funding in place for the Dark Peak and South Pennines to 2050. We will develop a clear future plan and
funding to develop and continue landscape scale delivery on the South West Peak.

2018 — 2023 PROGRESS

2018-19 [N

« Planning for water
industry’s Asset
Management Plan
7 (AMPT)

-3 submissions
progressed by
MFFP

-UU, Yorkshire
Water Services &
Severn Trent
Water business
plans fast tracked
by Ofwat for

delivery

« MFFP successes:

—5200 bags of brash
cut transported to
stabilize ground

—5300 gully blocks
installed to raise the
water table

—1024 ha of sphagnum
moss planted

—27 ha of bare peat
revegetated

—108 ha of invasive
rhododendron plants
removed

AMP7 arrangements

with Severn Trent

Water moved into

delivery phase

« Planning started for
Great North Bog

project /

« MFFP successes:

—28.6 ha of bare peat
stabilised

—1036 ha of
sphagnum moss
planted

—10,000 dams / gully
blocks installed

—15 km of drip edges
reprofiled for stability

—1.75 km of footpath
restored

MFFP engaged 13,000

people at 35 events

South WestPeak

Landscape Partnership

full programme review

approved, delivery

continued with

additional funding of

£56k secured

[

+ MFFP successes:
—20,000 gully
blocks installed
—12km? of
Sphagnum moss
planted
—Great North Bog
project formed
covering 7,000
km of upland peat
across the North
of England
« South West Peak
Landscape
Partnership closes
after 5 year

programme of

\ works

« MFFP restoration:

— activities on 551 ha
of degraded blanket
bog

—11,000 gully blocks
installed (Circa 55
km of grips and / or
gullies blocked)

—Flood and Coastal
Erosion Risk
Management
(FCERM) strategy
and AMP7
programme work
continues

—Planning towards
AMP8 in progress

AREA OF IMPACT 4:

A NATIONAL PARK FOR EVERYONE

INTENTION 4.1 AND 4.2: OVERCOME PHYSICAL AND PERCEIVED BARRIERS TO
ACCESS

ACTION
By 2023 we will be encouraging a wider range of people to enjoy the Peak District National Park at an
appropriate scale and adding value to the visitor economy.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19

Page 14

+ Draft Peak District
State of Tourism
Report 2019
produced

2019-20

+ Collaboration with
other English
National Parks to
create proposition
for Phase 2 of the

Discover England

Fund (DEF)

+ DEF Phase 2

programme provided

£158,000 of support

to PDNP including:

—Local business
online training

—Marketing support

—Launch searchable
consumer facing
website for National
Park experiences

—Updated trade
brochure

—90 businesses
engaged

—70 experiences
remain within
scheme

—Visitor Management
Group created
during pandemic

+ Visitor Management
Group became
permanent and
maintained focus on
local area issues

« 10 x teacher training
delivered to help every
Sheffield child to have a
Peak District
experience as part of
their education

« 1000 opportunities
delivered via
Generation Green and
Access Unlimited to
connect young people
to nature in the Peak
District

+ UK National Parks

Youth Voice residential

hosted in PDNP (31

young people attended)

« DefraAccess Grant
provided funding
for:

-6 ‘Miles without
Stiles’ routes
-6 route videos
-6 trampers
-5 all-terrain

wheelchairs

+ National Heritage
Fund (NHF)-
Championing
National Parks in
Development
Phase

« Joint Sustainable
Tourist Action Plan
created by Visit
Peak District and
Derbyshire and

L National Forest




AREA OF IMPACT 5:
ENCOURAGING ENJOYMENT WITH UNDERSTANDING

INTENTION 5.1: BALANCE OPPORTUNITIES FOR ENJOYMENT WITH CONSERVING A
FRAGILE ENVIRONMENT

ACTION

To balance opportunities for enjoyment with conserving a fragile environment we provided a refreshed
Countryside Code underpinning a Peak District brand which all relevant partners could promote equally
and consistently. #PeakDistrictProud (#PDP) shares the positive ways in which people can help care for
the national park; from taking home your litter and avoiding BBQs, to keeping your dog a lead. The
initiative also help to foster a sense of community belonging and association with the place for local
businesses and residents.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19 ) mp

+ Partner Workshop + Workshop held as + New national » Peak District * Multi-lingual visitor
agreed and part of National Countryside Code Ambassadors signage piloted at
planned for Trust's Peoples officially launched by scheme launch Bloor Pastures
summer 2019 to Landscape Project Natural England and « Peak District « Multi-lingual
kick start refresh of _#PeakDistrictProud Natural Resources Communicators downloads available
Countryside Code (#PDP) campaign Wales Forum continued to for new interpretive

formulated » Peak District meet curating early content at Stanage
—Builds on core Communicators Forum spring content for North-Lees Estate
message ‘respect, formed to assistwith nesting birds and * Peak District
protect and enjoy’ #PDP messaging lambing season Communicators
« Community « #PeakDistrictProud Forum continued to
volunteering and litter website includes 5 create online
collections organised translations of the content for
post lockdown \_ Countryside Code #PeakDistrictProud
« New alert system campaign, web_sne
introduced to inform \_ and social media )
visitors when an area
was reaching capacity
— first weekend of
operation was seen by

720,000 people
J

AREA OF IMPACT 5:
ENCOURAGING ENJOYMENT WITH UNDERSTANDING

INTENTION 5.2: ENSURE SHARED RESPONSIBILITY

ACTION
To ensure shared responsibility we will review and develop the current arrangements for events

management in the Peak District.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19 2020-21 2021-22

=

+ Event guidance
and a code of
conduct rolled out
for event
organisers to sign
up which allows:
—Events to be

added to calendar
—Advertised on

« Events system is
up and running

* Process for
booking and
sharing info about
events is working
well with partners

« A few events have
fall outside of new
process and these

« Limited events due
to Covid19
restrictions

« Monitoring of
events processto
continue as lock
down eases and a
busy yearis

expected

« Events system has
been modified to
include an
interactive map to
make it easier for
visitors to see what

is planned in their

area at a glance

« Workshop held in
January to produce
a series of
proposals to
improve events
management in the

Peak District

website X
« Positive feedback have been picked
received from up on a case by
\_ stakeholders ) case basis

Page 15



AREA OF IMPACT 5:
ENCOURAGING ENJOYMENT WITH UNDERSTANDING

INTENTION 5.3: DEVELOP AN AWARENESS AND UNDERSTANDING OF THE BENEFITS
OF THE PEAK DISTRICT NATIONAL PARK

ACTION

Utilising the valuable work of Inspired by the Peak District and the Peak District Environmental Quality
Mark, consider a revised approach to the promotion of the peak District brand so we establish a
provenance which is coherent and effective at promoting the link between business development, the
special qualities and the unique offer of the Peak District National Park.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19 2020-21 2022-23

=

« A group was + Group discussions * Progress stalled « Initiative is + No further actions
formed to promote on how Partnership during COVID-19 continuing and delivered against
the link between Group could lockdown contributing towards this intention this
BD, the special influence Local the Local Plan year
qualities and the Industry with a review by seeking to
unique offering of focus on ‘Clean, understand the land-
the PDNP green productivity use needs for new

« Two meetings were linked to a high business in
held in 2019 in quality of life’ and settlements, on
January and May use ‘positive farms and other
to focus on the planning powers; opportunities that
policy and delivery allied with a may be available
of economic proactive enabling through the adaptive
development in the role from District re-use of traditional
National Park Councils’ buildings

~—_

AREA OF IMPACT 6:
SUPPORTING THRIVING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND ECONOMY

INTENTION 6: SUPPORTING THRIVING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND
ECONOMY

ACTION

To support thriving and sustainable communities and economy, we will first define what is meant by
thriving and sustainable communities, in the context of the National Park Management Plan. This has now
been completed and will be used to develop the National Park Authorities approach to supporting
community development and help to inform the production and update of parish statements.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 N [ 3 [ 3

« A single and focused « Peak Park « A draft version of « Final endorsement « Definition
definition of ‘thriving Parishes Forum the thriving and of definition was embedded into
and sustainable (PPPF) created sustainable ratified at National Local Plan
communities’ in the their definition of definition was Park Authority + Draft issues &
context of National what ‘thriving and finalised combining meeting in May options document
Park was required sustainable ideas provided by 2021 to be used in approved by

« Two pieces of research communities’ look PPPF and plans and policies Member Steering
were initiated: like in the National comments via such as NPMP and Group

1. An update of Park Parish Statement Local Plan

population « A village statement process
projections and and audit for every + Comments were
demographic / work- Parish (93 in total) sought from the
force changes; was completed by constituent Council

2. A comprehensive 2020 in April 21 and a

audit of communities « A state of final definition was

as a basis for communities report finalised /
engagement with drafted with a index

communities on of key indicators to

what a thriving feed into a new

community is \ Local Plan j

Page 16



AREA OF IMPACT 6:

SUPPORTING THRIVING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND ECONOMY

INTENTION 6.1: IMPROVE ACCESS TO SERVICES

ACTION

To improve access to services we will work with providers to improve broadband and mobile connectivity

across the National Park in line with the UK’s Next Generation Access (NGA) standards.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19

« Meeting held in
January 2019 with
Digital Derbyshire
and Derbyshire Dales
District Council to
discuss continued roll
out of broadband and
mobile connectivity in
line with UK's Next
Generation Access
(NGA)

« National Park
supported Abney
broadband link via
community fund

»

« Interactive maps of
detailed coverage
information
provided based on
postcodes for:
—Derbyshire
—Staffordshire

« Further meeting
with Digital
Derbyshire held

Oct 19
N

AREA OF IMPACT 6:

« Coverage improving
across the National
Park, still difficulties in
isolated areas

+ Shared Rural Network
Programme launched
by Government (2020)

* Proposals extend
permitted development
to facilitate installation
of masts to improve
rural mobile and
broadband coverage

+ Heads of Planning for
National Parks and
National Parks
England met with
Mobile UK to discuss
concerns and
implications over
potential landscape
impact

J

« Mobile operator ‘3’
approached
National Park to
explore sites
designated as ‘Not
Spots’ within Park

« Working alongside
Derbyshire
Broadband to
overcome
landscape issues
and deliver
sustainable service
to Glossop and
surrounding areas

« Digital Derbyshire
64% take-up for
Phase 2 of Shared
Rural Network
Programme

« Project Gigabit
launched including
Broadband
Voucher Scheme
enabling people in
rural areas to
access funding to
cover costs of
installation to their
doorstop

~— @@

SUPPORTING THRIVING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND ECONOMY

INTENTION 6.2: SUPPORT THE PROVISION OF LOCALLY NEEDED HOUSING

ACTION

To support the provision of locally needed housing we will work through the National Park Management
Plan Advisory Group Housing Sub-Group to address the local need for appropriate housing in the National

Park.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19

+ High Peak Borough
Council identify
capacity via
Strategic Housing
Land Assessment
Report
During this year
applications were
approved for:
—33 new build
affordable houses
—3 agricultural
worker's dwellings
—18 additional
‘open market'

houses

»

+ Scoping phase
open to gather
evidence for next
Local Plan review
Noted that shared
cross boundary
planning is required
to make effective
use of resources
During this year
applications were
approved for:
—4 new build
affordable houses
-2 agricultural
worker's dwellings
—56 additional

‘open market

houses

+ Evidence gathering
is ongoing in
advance of next
planning review

* COVID-19 affected

planning

applications - no
information
available for this
year

[

« Cross boundary
planning issues still
need addressing
with constituent
authorities

« National Park
Authority working
with Derbyshire
Dales District
Council and High
Peak Borough
Council to
determine housing
need

« Different planning
policy approaches for
affordable homes being
tested in the Local Plan
issues and options
consultation
« Consultants (Lichfields)
undertaking Park-wide
review of housing need
and population
forecasts to guide:
—Local Plan and
Management Plan
actions on housing

—Settlement strategy
and environmental
capacity

—Planning policy
approach for the next
plan period (2005-
2040)

Page 17



AREA OF IMPACT 6:
SUPPORTING THRIVING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND ECONOMY

INTENTION 6.3: ENABLE LOCAL BUSINESSES TO THRIVE IN A WAY THAT IS
COMPATIBLE AND WHEREVER POSSIBLE ENHANCES THE SPECIAL QUALITIES OF
THE PEAK DISTRICT NATIONAL PARK

ACTION

To enable local businesses to thrive in a way that is compatible and, wherever possible, enhances the
special qualities of the Peak District National Park, we will assist the development of businesses in
conjunction with relevant bodies. Linking business support, grant aid, planning and economic
development.

2018 — 2023 KEY PROGRESS

2018-19 Y

* Regular meetings

agreed starting in

Sept 2018

between:

—Business Peak
District

—High Peak on Riverside programme of talks h
Bogrough Council Business Park in to increase local tt:us!nesses and farm
i usinesses arisin
—Derbyshire Bakewell and new understanding of ot g

County Council
—Marketing Peak

partnership
organisations

* Regular meetings

L * Planning service
continue between

« Work commenced

was maintained
during COVID-19
prioritising business
critical applications

bridge accessin A6

« Joint presentation
from EQM and
National Park
Officers delivered
as part of Business
Peak District's

process/ issues
« Evidence gathering
continues in

L4

.

« Processing evidence

to understand how
planning policy
should respond to
the pressures and
opportunities for

—climate change
—biodiversity net

Biesrttgic;t?irr]g advance of Local gain
4 ) \_ Plan reviews / —changing
—Local Enterprise agricultural subsidy
\ Partnership ) \ /

Page 18



Peak District National Park Management Plan 2018-23 -Overall Progress Report
Peak District National Park Authority,
Aldern House, Baslow Road,
Bakewell, DE45 1AE
tel: 01629 816200
email: NPMP@peakdistrict.gv.uk
www.peakdistrict.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



National Park Authority Meeting — Part A Agenda ltem 6.
28 April 2023

6. ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE PROPOSAL (PM)

1. Purpose of the report

To highlight key issues and give background to the confidential Part B item on
organisational change.

2. Key Issues

e The Authority is faced with a flat-cash grant from Defra and rising inflation. Some
savings are required because of this.

e In addition, the Authority’s pay structure has fallen behind regional comparators
meaning it is hard to recruit and retain key staff. This has particularly affected the
performance of our Planning Service but other services are also affected. To be
effective the Authority needs to be able to recruit and retain sufficient staff and not
carry ongoing vacancies which result in a lack of delivery and existing colleagues
having unsustainable workloads. To do this we need to implement a new pay
strategy, which will require further savings to be made on top of those needed to
address the flat-cash grant.

e The existing management structure of the Authority needs to be rationalised so that
the CEO can operate at a more strategic level. As well as reducing the size of the
management team, certain functions would benefit from being moved within or
between Services to create better alignment, allow improved performance and offer
up savings.

e A new, smaller, organisational structure is needed so that we can have an
affordable organisation with a full roster of employees paid at the right rate and
focusing on our core functions.

¢ To finance the new structure and pay strategy we need to both stop or change the
way we do certain things and take a more commercial and enterprising approach to
income generation.

3. Recommendation

1. To support the proposal to commence formal consultation on organisational
changes with discussion on the proposals and financial impacts to be held in
the confidential part of the meeting.

4, How does this contribute to our policies and legal obligations?

Legally the Authority needs to have a balanced budget and these proposals are
designed to achieve a long term financially sustainable position with an on-going
balanced budget.

The proposals will mean we can deliver our statutory planning functions to a higher
standard.

Overall there will be a reduction or change in what the Authority does, which has
implications for delivery of the National Park Management Plan (NPMP) and Authority
Plan. However, to not make these changes means that challenging recruitment and
staffing issues will continue and get worse, which itself will impact on our ability to
deliver our statutory duties, policies, legal obligations, Management Plan and Authority
Plan.

Page 21



National Park Authority Meeting — Part A
28 April 2023

Page 22

Background Information

Our role is to speak up for and care for the Peak District National Park for all to enjoy
forever. Our statutory purposes and duty focus on conserving, enhancing,
understanding and enjoyment. We need to deliver our purposes and duty in a way that
is resilient and affordable. To do this we need to be able to attract and retain the right
people and for that we need to implement our pay strategy.

The pay strategy is based on pay modelling that originally took place in 2019 and has
been updated in December 2022. The pay modelling shows the Authority’s pay scales
are below the regional public sector median for most grades. It is proposed that we
recalibrate our pay scales so as to be able to attract and retain the right staff.

At the Authority meeting on 3™ February 2023, Members unanimously gave their
support for the start of a process to explore ideas around a new structure.

Since 3" February, there have been extensive briefings with Heads of Service, teams,
volunteers and stakeholders. A comprehensive set of FAQs has been made available
and an online mechanism was established to receive feedback from colleagues,
volunteers and members of the public. Over 70 individuals or groups have submitted
feedback. Feedback has also been received directly from a number of stakeholder
groups and individuals.

A review of business-critical tasks has been undertaken to ensure there is continued
delivery of contractual, statutory and vital services during a period when many people
may have their attention diverted by the change process. An initial review of the
potential impact of the restructure on delivering the National Park Management Plan
and Authority Plan has been undertaken and concluded that, if implemented, these
proposals would impact on our ability to deliver commitments in the Authority Plan and
NPMP. In terms of the actions we deliver on our own in the Authority Plan, there would
be no change to the action, but how we deliver the outcome of the action may change.
In terms of the NPMP, there are a number of actions in aim 3, Welcome Place, that we
would no longer have the staff resource to deliver. At an appropriate time, we would
need to have discussions with partners around the future of these actions.

Once the restructure is agreed and completed there will need to be a fuller review of the
NPMP and Authority Plan, which should coincide with the publication of long-awaited
new guidance on Management Plans and a new outcomes framework from Defra.
Consideration has been given to potential new website requirements. A detailed project
management plan has been developed for the change process and ongoing
communication has taken place with everyone involved.

Proposals

We need a smaller, more affordable staffing base that is focused on achieving high
quality delivery of our core responsibilities. The changes | propose we commence
formal consultation on will also increase cross-organisational working (reducing silos)
and help create a more enterprising approach in some areas. The culture | am trying to
build across the Authority is one of vision, ambition, dynamism and delivery. We need to
be more confident, responsive and enabling. Significant additional resources are being
put into the planning service to cope with higher demands and improve our
performance.

Frontline services that directly deliver the NPMP have been protected as much as
possible although new approaches will be needed in some critical areas such as visitor



National Park Authority Meeting — Part A
28 April 2023

engagement. Back office savings have been made within most teams providing
enabling services based on finding efficiencies, new ways of working and
reprioritisation. Resources will be invested in areas and activities that will enable the
required transformation. The end result of the change process will be to have an
affordable, resilient organisation.

Funding for the transformation will come from the recent one-off Defra grant and our
reserves. Difficult decisions will be required but the need to make savings is
unavoidable and what is being proposed will create an organisation that is fit for
purpose now and able to build up again in the future.

Detailed proposals with financial information and impacts on people are presented to
Members in the confidential Part B paper.

7. Are there any corporate implications members should be concerned about?

Financial:
Financial details are covered in the confidential, Part B report.

Risk Management:
Any change can be unsettling and largescale changes affecting many people risks
having a negative effect on morale and productivity. There is also a flight risk during
change processes. This risk is more acute for certain roles. The situation is being
managed carefully and plans are in place for coverage of the statutory officer functions
and other key roles.

Change processes of this scale risk public concern and negative publicity even when
the changes are in the best interest of the Authority and conducted to high standards.
There has already been some negative publicity about the potential closure of visitor
centres.

Change processes of this scale consume significant management time.
Our ability to recruit during this process and even afterwards is not yet fully known.

Sustainability:
Potential changes would minimise impacts on sustainability work.

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion:

It is recognised that some of actions could have the potential to negatively affect people
that are protected under the Equality Act, however the intended outcomes and benefits
of the proposals plus the mitigations that will be put in place will mean the proposals are
justified and overall beneficial. To evidence this, an Equality Impact Assessments on
the proposed organisational changes will be submitted with the final Authority report.

Climate Change
There are no issues to highlight

8. Background papers (not previously published)
None.

0. Appendices
None.

Report Author, Job Title and Publication Date
Phil Mulligan, CEO, 20 April 2023.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5. National Park Management Plan - Overall Progress Report 2018-23
	Appendix 1 - NPMP 2018-23 Overall Progress Report (Final)

	6. Organisational Change Proposal (PM)

